

JOINT EXHIBIT 2
TARIFFS

14-375-GA-RDR, et al.

19-1085-GA-AAM, et al.

18-1830-GA-UNC, et al.

20-53-GA-RDR, et al.

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

	Sheet No.	Effective Date
<u>SERVICE REGULATIONS</u>		
Service Agreements.....	20	06/04/08
Supplying and Taking of Service.....	21	12/02/13
Customer's and Company's Installations.....	22	06/04/08
Metering.....	23	06/04/08
Billing and Payment.....	24	06/04/08
Disconnect for Nonpayment and Deposit Provisions.....	25	06/04/08
Application of Service Regulations.....	26	04/03/06
Credit for Residential Service.....	Supplement A	04/03/06
Disconnection of Service.....	Supplement B	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	27	
Reserved for Future Use.....	28	
Reserved for Future Use.....	29	
<u>FIRM SERVICE TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Rate RS, Residential Service.....	30	05/03/21 _____
Reserved for Future Use.....	31	
Rate GS-S, General Service – Small.....	32	05/03/21 _____
Rate RFT, Residential Firm Transportation Service.....	33	05/03/21 _____
Rate RSLI, Residential Service Low Income Pilot.....	34	05/03/21 _____
Rate GS-L, General Service – Large.....	35	05/03/21 _____
Rate RFTLI – Residential Firm Transportation Service, Low Income.....	36	05/03/21 _____
Rate FT-L, Firm Transportation Service – Large.....	37	05/03/21 _____
Reserved for Future Use.....	38	
Reserved for Future Use.....	39	
<u>OTHER TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Reserved for Future Use.....	40	
Reserved for Future Use.....	41	
Reserved for Future Use.....	42	
Reserved for Future Use.....	43	
Rate FRAS, Full Requirements Aggregation Service.....	44	10/01/20
Rate SAC, Retail Natural Gas Supplier and Aggregator Charges.....	45	06/04/08
Rate GGIT, Gas Generation Interruptible Transportation.....	46	05/03/21 _____
Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling.....	47	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	48	
Reserved for Future Use.....	49	
<u>TRANSPORTATION TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Rider EFBS, Enhanced Firm Balancing Service.....	50	10/01/20
Rate IT, Interruptible Transportation Service.....	51	05/03/21 _____
Rate FT-S, Firm Transportation Service – Small.....	52	05/03/21 _____
Rate SS, Standby Service.....	53	04/03/06
Reserved for Future Use.....	54	
Rate AS, Pooling Service for Interruptible Transportation.....	55	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	56	
Rate GTS, Gas Trading Service.....	57	04/01/07
Rate IMBS, Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service.....	58	10/01/20
Rate DGS, Distributed Generation Service.....	59	06/04/08

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~_____ in Case No. ~~19~~18-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE FT-S

FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - SMALL

AVAILABILITY

Firm full requirements transportation service for an individual non-residential customer using 4,000 CCF or less during the prior calendar year at one premise, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. This service is available within the Company's entire service territory, and at the customer's option, to serve the firm service requirements of interruptible transportation customers in combination with service under Rate IT to all non-residential customers except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. The Supplier or the Company shall give no less than thirty (30) days' written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. Service shall be provided on demand from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. Customer must enter into a "pooling" agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program, and must arrange for the delivery of gas into Company's system.

Customers that believe that they will significantly increase throughput, from their historic firm service levels, shall so inform the Company.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premise to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers that elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by Company in order to return customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 52.~~45~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 52.~~34~~
Page 2 of 5

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

After the Company installs additional information system capability on or before September 1, 2007, a customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Service provided under this schedule shall be firm service.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill shall be determined in accordance with the following rates and charges:

Fixed Delivery Service Charge \$~~91.64~~86.73

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to the customer: \$0.~~099452~~094126 per CCI

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: May 3, 2021

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 52.~~45~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 52.~~34~~
Page 3 of 5

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider_AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate FT-S for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 of the Ohio Revised Code, or to the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by, Company's requirements for its pooling program. This list shall be available to customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer that desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with any notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises. During severe weather periods, the Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on the Company's system. While the Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so. A customer whose operations are affected by swings in the composition of the Company's gas is required to notify the Company of that fact so that the Company can give the customer advance notice when the propane plants are going to be in operation.

4. Service Term

Except customers returned for non-payment or for good cause shown, a customer that elects service under this tariff, other than a small commercial customer, shall not be permitted to return to Company's sales service for at least one (1) year.

5. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to the Company's system.

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT

If the customer requests the Company to install remote meter reading equipment at customer's meter location in order to monitor the customer's usage on a daily basis, customer shall be responsible for the cost of such equipment either through a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, designed to reimburse the Company for the cost of such equipment.

In the event customer, in co-operation with its Supplier, wishes to install telemetering devices or related equipment in order to monitor consumption, the Company shall provide the necessary interface with its meters. Customer shall be responsible for the costs of providing such interface, including the cost of electric and or telephone services, if required. Customer shall pay the Company a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, that is designed to reimburse Company for the cost of providing such interface. Customer shall be solely responsible for

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

installing, maintaining, and operating devices that it installs. Customer, or its agent, shall provide the Company with daily usage data if requested by the Company. In the event of disagreement between the parties, the Company's metered consumption data shall be used for all billings to the customer.

CURTAILMENT OF SERVICE

Company may curtail service under this rate schedule in accordance with curtailment procedures on file with, and approved by, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. In the event customer fails to comply with the Company's direction to curtail, the Company reserves the right to physically discontinue service to the customer. Company shall not be liable in damages or otherwise to customer for any loss of production, other claim, or any consequences occasioned by customer as a result of such curtailment or because of the lack of advance notice to customer of such curtailment.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 10
Sheet No. 69.~~34~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 69.~~23~~
Page 1 of 1

RIDER MGP

MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT RIDER

APPLICABILITY

~~Applicable to all customers receiving service under the Company's sales and transportation rate schedules.~~

~~The charges for the respective gas service schedules are:~~

Rate RS and RSLI, Residential Service	\$ 0.00/month
Rate RFT and RFTLI, Residential Firm Transportation Service	\$ 0.00/month
Rate GS-S and FT-S, General Service and Firm Transportation Small	\$ 0.00/month
Rate DGS, Distributed Generation Service	\$ 0.00/month
Rate GS-L and FT-L, General Service and Firm Transportation Large	\$ 0.00/month
Rate IT, Interruptible Transportation Service	\$ 0.00/month
Rate GGIT, Gas Generation Interruptible Transportation Rate	\$ 0.00/month

THIS TARIFF IS HEREBY CANCELLED AND WITHDRAWN

Issued pursuant to an Order dated ~~January 14, 2015~~ in Case ~~12-168518-1830-GA-AIR-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~July 24, 2019~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Effective: ~~July 31, 2019~~

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

	Sheet No.	Effective Date
<u>SERVICE REGULATIONS</u>		
Service Agreements.....	20	06/04/08
Supplying and Taking of Service.....	21	12/02/13
Customer's and Company's Installations.....	22	06/04/08
Metering.....	23	06/04/08
Billing and Payment.....	24	06/04/08
Disconnect for Nonpayment and Deposit Provisions.....	25	06/04/08
Application of Service Regulations.....	26	04/03/06
Credit for Residential Service.....	Supplement A	04/03/06
Disconnection of Service.....	Supplement B	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	27	
Reserved for Future Use.....	28	
Reserved for Future Use.....	29	
<u>FIRM SERVICE TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Rate RS, Residential Service.....	30	_____
Reserved for Future Use.....	31	_____
Rate GS-S, General Service – Small.....	32	_____
Rate RFT, Residential Firm Transportation Service.....	33	_____
Rate RSLI, Residential Service Low Income Pilot.....	34	_____
Rate GS-L, General Service – Large.....	35	_____
Rate RFTLI – Residential Firm Transportation Service, Low Income.....	36	_____
Rate FT-L, Firm Transportation Service – Large	37	_____
Reserved for Future Use.....	38	
Reserved for Future Use.....	39	
<u>OTHER TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Reserved for Future Use.....	40	
Reserved for Future Use.....	41	
Reserved for Future Use.....	42	
Reserved for Future Use.....	43	
Rate FRAS, Full Requirements Aggregation Service.....	44	10/01/20
Rate SAC, Retail Natural Gas Supplier and Aggregator Charges.....	45	06/04/08
Rate GGIT, Gas Generation Interruptible Transportation	46	
Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling.....	47	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	48	
Reserved for Future Use.....	49	
<u>TRANSPORTATION TARIFF SCHEDULES</u>		
Rider EFBS, Enhanced Firm Balancing Service.....	50	10/01/20
Rate IT, Interruptible Transportation Service.....	51	_____
Rate FT-S, Firm Transportation Service – Small.....	52	_____
Rate SS, Standby Service.....	53	04/03/06
Reserved for Future Use.....	54	
Rate AS, Pooling Service for Interruptible Transportation.....	55	12/02/13
Reserved for Future Use.....	56	
Rate GTS, Gas Trading Service.....	57	04/01/07
Rate IMBS, Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service.....	58	10/01/20
Rate DGS, Distributed Generation Service.....	59	06/04/08

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities
Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

	Sheet No.	Effective Date
<u>RIDERS</u>		
Rider DRR, Default Recovery Rider.....	60	04/03/06
Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider.....	61	
Rider X, Main Extension Policy.....	62	06/29/18
Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan.....	63	07/30/20
Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.....	64	04/03/06
Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider.....	65	05/03/21
Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider.....	66	06/04/08
Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider.....	67	07/30/20
Rider STR, State Tax Rider.....	68	12/02/13
Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant	69	_____
<u>GAS COST RECOVERY RIDERS</u>		
Rider GCR, Gas Cost Recovery.....	70	04/03/06
Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate.....	71	05/03/21
Reserved for Future Use.....	72	
Reserved for Future Use.....	73	
Reserved for Future Use.....	74	
Rider FBS, Firm Balancing Service.....	75	10/01/20
Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.....	76	03/03/21
Reserved for Future Use.....	77	
Reserved for Future Use.....	78	
Reserved for Future Use.....	79	
<u>MISCELLANEOUS</u>		
Rate MPS, Meter Pulse Service.....	80	08/24/09
Returned Check Charge.....	81	05/01/06
Charge for Reconnection of Service.....	82	12/02/13
Rider SBS, Optional Summary Billing Service Pilot	83	04/03/06
Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program.....	84	05/03/21
Rate ARM, Accounts Receivable Management Service.....	85	04/03/06
Reserved for Future Use.....	86	
Rider FTDC, Firm Transportation Development Cost Rider.....	87	03/30/07
Rider AU, Advanced Utility Rider.....	88	03/26/21
Rider IDR, Infrastructure Development Rider.....	89	06/29/18

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

<u>Division and Town Names</u>	<u>Town</u>		<u>Town</u>
<u>Division No. 1 (Cincinnati)</u>	<u>No.</u>	<u>Division No. 2 (Middletown) (Cont'd)</u>	<u>No.</u>
Addyston	17	Franklin.....	03
Amberley Village	33	Franklin Twp.....	
Anderson Twp.....		Harlan Twp.....	
Arlington Heights.....	03	Lebanon.....	51
Blue Ash	30	Lemon Twp.....	
Cheviot	04	Liberty Twp.....	
Cincinnati	01	Madison Twp.....	
Clermont County	96	Maineville.....	
Cleves	18	Mason.....	06
Colerain Twp.....		Miami Twp (Montgomery Co.).....	
Columbia Township	55	Middletown.....	42
Crosby Twp.....		Monroe.....	40
Deer Park	05	Montgomery Cty.....	94
Delhi Township	70	New Miami.....	
Elmwood Place.....	06	Springboro.....	45
Evendale.....	40	St. Clair Twp.....	
Fairfax	41	Trenton.....	52
Forest Park.....	20	Turtle Creek Twp.....	
Glendale.....	07	Union Twp. (Warren Co.).....	
Golf Manor.....	38	Warren County.....	92
Green Township	71	West Chester.....	
Greenhills.....	36	<u>Division No. 3 (Batavia)</u>	
Hamilton County	91	Aberdeen.....	66
Indian Hill	34	Adams County.....	90
Lincoln Heights	37	Amelia.....	89
Lockland	08	Batavia.....	78
Madeira	21	Batavia Twp.....	
Mariemont	09	Bentonville.....	
Miami Twp.....		Bethel.....	71
Montgomery.....	24	Blanchester.....	63
Mt. Healthy.....	10	Brown County.....	98
Newtown.....	42	Clermont County.....	96
North Bend.....	26	Clinton County.....	95
North College Hill.....	11	Columbia Township.....	55
Norwood.....	02	Georgetown.....	87
Reading.....	12	Goshen Twp.....	
Ross Twp.....		Hamersville.....	86
St. Bernard	13	Highland County.....	99
Sharonville.....	14	Manchester.....	65
Silverton.....	15	Miami Twp. (Clermont County).....	
Springdale.....	19	Milford (Clermont County).....	69
Springfield Township.....	73	Milford (Hamilton County).....	68
Sycamore Township.....	74	Mt. Orab.....	76
Symmes Twp.....		New Richmond.....	74
Woodlawn.....	35	Ohio Twp.....	
Wyoming.....	16	Pierce Twp.....	
<u>Division No. 2 (Middletown)</u>		Ripley.....	67
Butler County.....	97	Terrace Park.....	70
Carlisle.....	54	Warren County.....	92
Chautauqua.....		West Union (Adams Co.).....	
Clear Creek Twp.....		Williamsburg.....	73
Deerfield Twp.....		Union Twp. (Brown Co.).....	
		Union Twp. (Clermont Co.).....	

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

<u>Division and Town Names</u>	<u>Town No.</u>	<u>Division No. 6 (Harrison)</u>	<u>Town No.</u>
<u>Division No. 4 (Oxford)</u>			
Butler County.....	97	Hamilton County.....	91
<u>Division No. 5 (Fairfield)</u>		Harrison.....	01
Butler County.....	97	Harrison Twp.....	
Fairfield.....	09	<u>Division No. 7 (Loveland)</u>	
Fairfield Twp.....		Clermont County.....	96
Hamilton.....	03	Hamilton County.....	91
Hamilton County.....	91	Loveland (Clermont County).....	11
Hanover Twp.....		Loveland (Hamilton County).....	09
Millville.....	08	Mason.....	06
New Miami.....	01	Morrow.....	07
Seven Mile.....	02	South Lebanon.....	05
Union Twp. (Butler Co.).....		Warren County.....	02
Warren County.....	92		

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RS

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for residential purposes when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month \$31.26

Plus a Usage-Based Charge for

First 400 CCF	\$0.030975 per CCF
Additional CCF	\$0.092068 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cuts and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RS for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 30.19
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 30.18
Page 2 of 2

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-15 (C), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code; and
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE GS-S

GENERAL SERVICE - SMALL

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for any purpose by an individual non-residential customer using 4,000 CCF or less during the prior calendar year at one premises when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month	\$86.73
---	---------

Plus a Usage-Based Charge for All CCF delivered at	\$0.094126 per CCF
---	--------------------

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate GS-S for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 32.5
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 32.4
Page 2 of 2

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERM OF SERVICE

One year, terminable thereafter on three (3) days written notice by either customer or Company.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RFT

RESIDENTIAL FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

AVAILABILITY

Firm transportation service for residential purposes, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter. Service is available to all residential customers, except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's sales service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included, in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. In either case, the Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. A customer must enter into an agreement with a Supplier who meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program pursuant to Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

Residential customers who are enrolled in income payment plans pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-12, Ohio Administrative Code (PIPP customers), shall be provided their alternative gas supply service exclusively through their own supply pool, for which gas is provided by a willing Supplier whose bid has been approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by the Company in order to return a customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month \$31.26

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to customer at:

First 400 CCF	\$0.030975 per CCF
Additional CCF	\$0.092068 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

NET MONTHLY BILL (Cont'd.)

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RFT for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to any customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with all notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises.

During severe weather periods, Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on Company's system. While Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so.

4. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to Company's system.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-12, Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code;
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid; and
- (4) the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RSLI

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE LOW INCOME

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for residential purposes when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Eligible customers are non-PIPP, low usage residential customers verified at or below 175% of poverty level. The total number of customers that may receive service under Rate RSLI and Rate RFTLI is 10,000.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month	\$27.48
---	---------

Plus a Usage-Based Charge for All CCF	\$0.030975 per CCF
--	--------------------

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

- Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Credit and Jobs Act Rider
- Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program,
- Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

- Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
- Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
- Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider.
- Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate
- Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RSLI for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 34.5
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 34.4
Page 2 of 2

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code; and
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

	Sheet No.	Effective Date
<u>RIDERS</u>		
Rider DRR, Default Recovery Rider.....	60	04/03/06
Reserved for Future Use Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider.....	61	_____
Rider X, Main Extension Policy.....	62	06/29/18
Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan.....	63	07/30/20
Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.....	64	04/03/06
Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider.....	65	05/03/21
Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider.....	66	06/04/08
Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider.....	67	07/30/20
Rider STR, State Tax Rider.....	68	12/02/13
Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant	69	07/31/19 _____
<u>GAS COST RECOVERY RIDERS</u>		
Rider GCR, Gas Cost Recovery.....	70	04/03/06
Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate.....	71	05/03/21
Reserved for Future Use.....	72	
Reserved for Future Use.....	73	
Reserved for Future Use.....	74	
Rider FBS, Firm Balancing Service.....	75	10/01/20
Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.....	76	03/03/21
Reserved for Future Use.....	77	
Reserved for Future Use.....	78	
Reserved for Future Use.....	79	
<u>MISCELLANEOUS</u>		
Rate MPS, Meter Pulse Service.....	80	08/24/09
Returned Check Charge.....	81	05/01/06
Charge for Reconnection of Service.....	82	12/02/13
Rider SBS, Optional Summary Billing Service Pilot	83	04/03/06
Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program.....	84	05/03/21
Rate ARM, Accounts Receivable Management Service.....	85	04/03/06
Reserved for Future Use.....	86	
Rider FTDC, Firm Transportation Development Cost Rider.....	87	03/30/07
Rider AU, Advanced Utility Rider.....	88	03/26/21
Rider IDR, Infrastructure Development Rider.....	89	06/29/18

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~_____ in Case No. ~~1918-07941830~~-GA-~~ALT~~-~~UNC~~ before
the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

INDEX TO APPLICABLE GAS TARIFF SCHEDULES AND COMMUNITIES SERVED

<u>Division and Town Names</u>	<u>Town</u>		<u>Town</u>
<u>Division No. 1 (Cincinnati)</u>	<u>No.</u>	<u>Division No. 2 (Middletown) (Cont'd)</u>	<u>No.</u>
Addyston	17	Franklin.....	03
Amberley Village	33	Franklin Twp.....	
Anderson Twp.....		Harlan Twp.....	
Arlington Heights.....	03	Lebanon.....	51
Blue Ash	30	Lemon Twp.....	
Cheviot	04	Liberty Twp.....	
Cincinnati	01	Madison Twp.....	
Clermont County	96	Maineville.....	
Cleves	18	Mason.....	06
Colerain Twp.....		Miami Twp (Montgomery Co.).....	
Columbia Township	55	Middletown.....	42
Crosby Twp.....		Monroe.....	40
Deer Park	05	Montgomery Cty.....	94
Delhi Township	70	New Miami.....	
Elmwood Place.....	06	Springboro.....	45
Evendale.....	40	St. Clair Twp.....	
Fairfax	41	Trenton.....	52
Forest Park.....	20	Turtle Creek Twp.....	
Glendale.....	07	Union Twp. (Warren Co.).....	
Golf Manor.....	38	Warren County.....	92
Green Township	71	West Chester.....	
Greenhills.....	36	<u>Division No. 3 (Batavia)</u>	
Hamilton County	91	Aberdeen.....	66
Indian Hill	34	Adams County.....	90
Lincoln Heights	37	Amelia.....	89
Lockland	08	Batavia.....	78
Madeira	21	Batavia Twp.....	
Mariemont	09	Bentonville.....	
Miami Twp.....		Bethel.....	71
Montgomery.....	24	Blanchester.....	63
Mt. Healthy.....	10	Brown County.....	98
Newtown.....	42	Clermont County.....	96
North Bend.....	26	Clinton County.....	95
North College Hill.....	11	Columbia Township.....	55
Norwood.....	02	Georgetown.....	87
Reading.....	12	Goshen Twp.....	
Ross Twp.....		Hamersville.....	86
St. Bernard	13	Highland County.....	99
Sharonville.....	14	Manchester.....	65
Silverton.....	15	Miami Twp. (Clermont County).....	
Springdale.....	19	Milford (Clermont County).....	69
Springfield Township.....	73	Milford (Hamilton County).....	68
Sycamore Township.....	74	Mt. Orab.....	76
Symmes Twp.....		New Richmond.....	74
Woodlawn.....	35	Ohio Twp.....	
Wyoming.....	16	Pierce Twp.....	
<u>Division No. 2 (Middletown)</u>		Ripley.....	67
Butler County.....	97	Terrace Park.....	70
Carlisle.....	54	Warren County.....	92
Chautauqua.....		West Union (Adams Co.).....	
Clear Creek Twp.....		Williamsburg.....	73
Deerfield Twp.....		Union Twp. (Brown Co.).....	
		Union Twp. (Clermont Co.).....	

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

<u>Division and Town Names</u>	<u>Town No.</u>	<u>Division No. 6 (Harrison)</u>	<u>Town No.</u>
<u>Division No. 4 (Oxford)</u>			
Butler County.....	97	Hamilton County.....	91
<u>Division No. 5 (Fairfield)</u>		Harrison.....	01
Butler County.....	97	Harrison Twp.....	
Fairfield.....	09	<u>Division No. 7 (Loveland)</u>	
Fairfield Twp.....		Clermont County.....	96
Hamilton.....	03	Hamilton County.....	91
Hamilton County.....	91	Loveland (Clermont County).....	11
Hanover Twp.....		Loveland (Hamilton County).....	09
Millville.....	08	Mason.....	06
New Miami.....	01	Morrow.....	07
Seven Mile.....	02	South Lebanon.....	05
Union Twp. (Butler Co.).....		Warren County.....	02
Warren County.....	92		

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 30.~~18~~19
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 30.~~17~~18
Page 1 of 2

RATE RS

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for residential purposes when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month \$~~33-03~~31.26

Plus a Usage-Based Charge for

First 400 CCF	\$0. 032728 — <u>030975</u>
Additional CCF	per CCF
	\$0. 097278 — <u>092068</u>
	per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cuts and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RS for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2024 in Case No. 19-079418-1830-GA-ALTUNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: April 23, 2024

Effective: May 3, 2024

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 30.~~18~~19
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 30.~~17~~18
Page 2 of 2

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-15 (C), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code; and
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~19-079418-1830-GA-ALTUNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 32.~~45~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 32.~~34~~
Page 1 of 2

RATE GS-S

GENERAL SERVICE - SMALL

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for any purpose by an individual non-residential customer using 4,000 CCF or less during the prior calendar year at one premises when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month	\$ 91.64 <u>86.73</u>
Plus a Usage-Based Charge for All CCF delivered at	\$0. 099452 <u>094126</u> per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate GS-S for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~19-079118-1830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 32.~~45~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 32.~~34~~
Page 2 of 2

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERM OF SERVICE

One year, terminable thereafter on three (3) days written notice by either customer or Company.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~19-079118-1830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RFT

RESIDENTIAL FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

AVAILABILITY

Firm transportation service for residential purposes, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter. Service is available to all residential customers, except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's sales service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included, in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. In either case, the Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. A customer must enter into an agreement with a Supplier who meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program pursuant to Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

Residential customers who are enrolled in income payment plans pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-12, Ohio Administrative Code (PIPP customers), shall be provided their alternative gas supply service exclusively through their own supply pool, for which gas is provided by a willing Supplier whose bid has been approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by the Company in order to return a customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 33.~~45~~16
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 33.~~44~~15
Page 2 of 4

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month

~~\$33.03~~31.26

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to customer at:

First 400 CCF
Additional CCF

~~\$0.032728-030975~~ per CCF
~~\$0.097278—092068~~ per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

~~Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider~~

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

NET MONTHLY BILL (Cont'd.)

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RFT for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to any customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with all notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises.

During severe weather periods, Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on Company's system. While Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so.

4. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to Company's system.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-12, Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code;
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid; and
- (4) the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 34.45
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 34.34
Page 1 of 2

RATE RSLI

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE LOW INCOME

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for residential purposes when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Eligible customers are non-PIPP, low usage residential customers verified at or below 175% of poverty level. The total number of customers that may receive service under Rate RSLI and Rate RFTLI is 10,000.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month

~~\$29.03~~ \$27.48

Plus a Usage-Based Charge for
All CCF

~~\$0.032728~~ .030975 per
CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Credit and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program,

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider.

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RSLI for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: April 23, 2021

Effective: May 3, 2021

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 34.45
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 34.34
Page 2 of 2

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the monthly Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code; and
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 35.45
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 35.34
Page 1 of 2

RATE GS-L

GENERAL SERVICE - LARGE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for any purpose by an individual non-residential customer using more than 4,000 CCF during the prior calendar year at one premises when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month	\$ 226.64 <u>214.50</u>
Plus a Usage-Based Charge for All CCF delivered at	\$ 0.404830 <u>0.99216</u> per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate GS-L for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: May 3, 2021

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 35.45
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 35.34
Page 2 of 2

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERM OF SERVICE

One (1) year, terminable thereafter on three (3) days written notice by either customer or Company.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RFTLI

RESIDENTIAL FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE – LOW INCOME

AVAILABILITY

Firm transportation service for residential purposes, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter. Service is available to eligible residential customers, except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. Eligible customers are non-PIPP, low usage residential customer verified at or below 175% of poverty level. The total number of customers who may receive service under Rate RSLI and Rate RFTLI is 10,000. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's sales service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. In either case, the Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. A customer must enter into an agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program pursuant to Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

Residential customers who are enrolled in income payment plans pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code (PIPP Customers), shall be provided their alternative gas supply service exclusively through their own supply pool, for which gas is provided by a willing Supplier whose bid has been approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by the Company in order to return a customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2024 in Case No. 4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: April 23, 2024

Effective: May 3, 2024

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 36.45
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 36.34
Page 2 of 4

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month \$~~29.03~~27.48

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported
for customer from Company's city-gate measuring
stations to the outlet side of Company's
meter used to measure deliveries to
customer at:

All CCF \$0.~~032728~~030975 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RFTLI for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers that sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to any customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with all notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises.

During severe weather periods, Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on Company's system. While Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

4. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to Company's system.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code;
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid; and
- (4) the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

RATE FT-L

FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - LARGE

AVAILABILITY

Firm full requirements transportation service for an individual non-residential customer using more than 4,000 CCF during the prior calendar year at one premises, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. This service is available within the Company's entire service territory, and at the customer's option, to serve the firm service requirements of interruptible transportation customers in combination with service under Rate IT to all non-residential customers except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included, in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. The Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. Service shall be provided on demand from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. Customer must enter into a "pooling" agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program, and must arrange for the delivery of gas into Company's system.

Customers who believe that they will significantly increase throughput, from their historic firm service levels, shall so inform the Company.

Except as provided under Company Rider NGV, gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by Company in order to return customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 37.~~45~~
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 37.~~34~~
Page 2 of 5

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Service provided under this schedule shall be firm service.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill shall be determined in accordance with the following rates and charges:

Fixed Delivery Service Charge \$~~226.64~~214.50

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to the customer: \$0.~~104830~~099216 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Supplier shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 4918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: May 3, 2021

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider_AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate FT-L for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code, or to the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with any notice requirements of the Supplier's Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premise. During severe weather periods, the Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on the Company's system. While the Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so. A customer whose operations are affected by swings in the composition of the Company's gas is required to notify the Company of that fact so that the Company can give the customer advance notice when the propane plants are going to be in operation.

4. Service Term

Except customers returned for non-payment or for good cause shown, a customer who elects service under this tariff, other than a small commercial customer, shall not be permitted to return to Company's sales service for at least one (1) year.

5. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to the Company's system.

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT

If the customer requests the Company to install remote meter reading equipment at customer's meter location in order to monitor the customer's usage on a daily basis, customer shall be responsible for the cost of such equipment, either through a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, designed to reimburse the Company for the cost of such equipment.

In the event customer, in cooperation with its Supplier, wishes to install telemetering devices or related equipment in order to monitor consumption, the Company shall provide the necessary interface with its meters. Customer shall be responsible for the costs of providing such interface, including the cost of electric and or telephone services, if required. Customer shall pay the Company, either through a lump sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option,

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

designed to reimburse Company for the cost of providing such interface. Customer shall be solely responsible for installing, maintaining, and operating devices that it installs. Customer, or its agent, shall provide the Company with daily usage data if requested by the Company. In the event of disagreement between the parties, the Company's metered consumption data shall be used for all billings to the customer.

CURTAILMENT OF SERVICE

Company may curtail service under this rate schedule in accordance with curtailment procedures on file with, and approved by, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. In the event customer fails to comply with the Company's direction to curtail, the Company reserves the right to physically discontinue service to the customer. Company shall not be liable in damages or otherwise to customer for any loss of production, other claim, or any consequences occasioned by customer as a result of such curtailment or because of the lack of advance notice to customer of such curtailment.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

RATE GGIT

GAS GENERATION INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION RATE

AVAILABILITY

Interruptible local delivery service for natural gas to be used in any commercial gas-fired electric generators, including but not limited to customer-owned co-generation, and available to any customer that: (1) signs a Service Agreement contract with the Company for service under this Rate GGIT; (2) arranges for the delivery of gas into the Company's system for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served; and (3) utilizes natural gas transported under this tariff as its primary fuel source in combustion gas turbines unit(s) or combined cycle unit(s) for the purpose of generating electricity. Service under this tariff will be provided by displacement and on a "best efforts" basis. The Company reserves the right to decline requests to initiate or continue service hereunder whenever, in the Company's sole judgment, rendering service will be detrimental to the operation of the Company's system or impair its ability to supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, IT, or other special contract arrangements. This tariff schedule shall not preclude the Company, with Commission approval, from entering into special arrangements that are designed to meet unique circumstances.

The service provided hereunder will be interruptible local gas delivery service provided on a "best efforts" basis from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of customer's meter. The Company, to ensure its ability to reliably supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, and IT, shall have the right for operational, but not economic reasons, to designate the city gate receipt points where the customer is required to deliver its gas.

In order to receive service under this tariff, customer must have in place throughout the term of this agreement, a gas storage/balancing service agreement with an upstream supplier under which that supplier will balance customer's hourly and daily usage with deliveries into the Company's system. The Company will install, at customer's expense, metering equipment that will allow it to monitor customer's hourly and daily usage.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All gas consumed is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Administrative Charge per month:

Shall be equal to the monthly Administrative Charge under the Company's Interruptible Transportation Tariff (Rate IT) or its successor tariff.

Facilities Charge per month:

Monthly amount required to amortize, over the term of the Service Agreement, any additional or incremental costs that the Company incurs in constructing facilities to bring service to customer, including the costs of such facilities as mains and service installations, metering and regulating equipment, and telemetric and flow control equipment, plus a reasonable contribution to overall system costs.

Filed pursuant to Order dated April 21, 2021 in Case No. 1918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: April 23, 2021

Effective: May 3, 2021

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 46.~~42~~
Cancels and Supersedes
~~Original~~ Sheet No. 46.1
Page 2 of 4

NET MONTHLY BILL (Contd.)

Usage-based Delivery Charge:

Company will deliver the arranged-for gas, less shrinkage, which is equal to the Company's system average unaccounted-for percentage, at a rate of:

First 1,000,000 CCF per month	100% of Rate IT Commodity Charge
Next 500,000 CCF per month	75% of Rate IT Commodity Charge
Over 1,500,000 CCF per month	60% of Rate IT Commodity Charge

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, if applicable, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

~~Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider~~

Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

In addition, customer's net monthly bill, excluding gas costs and related taxes that are billed to the customer by supplier, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL PROVISION

Customer will be subject to a monthly "Minimum bill" equal to the Monthly Administrative Charge and Facilities Charge, as noted above, plus applicable riders and taxes, as may be amended and approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio from time to time.

UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

In the event customer fails to interrupt transportation deliveries at Company's request, any excess deliveries through customer's meter will be considered unauthorized deliveries that are subject to the flow-through-of-pipeline penalty charges to the extent that they are incurred by the Company, and in addition thereto, shall be paid for as specified under the "Charges For Unauthorized Deliveries" provision of this rate schedule. The charges for such unauthorized deliveries shall be billed directly to the customer. However, Company may, at its sole discretion, physically discontinue service to the customer if customer refuses to interrupt service when requested by Company. Further, Company may temporarily or permanently discontinue service if customer fails to operate in accordance with the Company's directives and limitations regarding service under this tariff.

Filed pursuant to Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07941830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

CHARGES FOR UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

Any customer taking unauthorized deliveries shall be billed an amount reflective of the general service rate, Rate GS-S, Sheet No. 32, including the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery rate or Company's highest cost gas, and one month's demand charges on the volume difference (this charge shall not be imposed more frequently than once in any thirty day period), and/or the cost of operating the Company's propane peak shaving plant, and/or, if so required to effectuate compliance with the interruptible provisions of this schedule, the cost incurred by the Company to valve-off the service. In any event, customer shall reimburse the Company for any interstate pipeline penalty charges resulting from such unauthorized deliveries.

BALANCING

For purposes of this tariff, a "pool" shall be defined as one or more customers taking service under Rate GGIT that are joined together for supply management purposes. A "pool operator" has a contractual responsibility to manage the aggregated gas supply requirements of all the Rate GGIT customers that comprise its pool. All supply management responsibilities of individual customers are transferred to the pool operator once a customer becomes a part of a pool, as the aggregated balancing requirements of all pool members are treated under this tariff as though they were a single customer with its own supply management responsibilities. Because of the large hourly and daily usage likely to flow under this tariff, the pool operator is required to contract with the pipelines designated by the Company for hourly and daily deliveries that correspond with their actual burn of gas delivered under this tariff.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The customer shall enter into a written Service Agreement with the Company. Such Service Agreement shall set forth specific arrangements as to the transportation services provided, the level of firm gas required by customer, Monthly Facilities Charge, the minimum bill calculation, and any other circumstances relating to the individual customer.

The Company's "best efforts" are defined as the right, at any time, to curtail or interrupt the delivery or transportation of gas under this tariff when, in the judgment of the Company, such curtailment or interruption is necessary to enable the Company to maintain deliveries to higher priority customers or to respond to any emergency.

The Pool operator agrees, upon request by Company, to produce, in a timely manner, proof of the purchase of the natural gas transported, any necessary regulatory approvals, and any and all transportation arrangements with all interstate pipelines, intrastate pipelines, or others involved in transporting the pool gas' supplies.

Company will not be liable for any costs and/or penalties charged by pipelines, or suppliers, because of pool operator's over- or under-deliveries into the pipeline, or pool customers' failure to take deliveries through customers' meters that, in the aggregate, match the amount of gas transported by the pool operator to the

Filed pursuant to Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 46.~~42~~
Cancels and Supersedes
~~Original~~ Sheet No. 46.1
Page 4 of 4

Company's city gate.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

The Company will provide customer and/or its designated pool operator, by electronic or other available means of communication, its best available operating data on gas deliveries to individual customers and for the combined pool on an hourly and daily basis. Hourly/daily operational information shall include information on hourly/daily gas flows provided by Automated Meter Reading (AMR), equipment, telemetry, or any other means the Company has available to provide the customer or its designated pool operator with its best estimate of hourly/daily gas deliveries for individual customer's and the pool's combined accounts.

In order to administer the provisions of this tariff and monitor customer's hourly/daily usage, the Company will install remote metering equipment on customer's meter site to separately meter gas used for generation volumes that qualify for this rate. Customer will be responsible for payment of the cost of such telemetric equipment, either through a lump sum payment, or at the Company's option, through a monthly facilities charge designed to reimburse the Company for the costs of such equipment. Customer will also be responsible for providing the Company with access to a telephone service at customer's metering site, or such other equipment or utilities that may be necessary, and shall also be responsible for the monthly charges for such telephone service or other necessary equipment or utilities.

The primary term of contract shall be a minimum of five (5) years. After completion of the primary term, such contract shall continue month to month unless cancelled by either party by giving thirty (30) days written notice.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law. This will not preclude a special agreement in the event other considerations, such as bypass, are deemed solely by Company to be credible options for the customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07941830~~-GA-~~ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE IT

INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

AVAILABILITY

Curtable natural gas local delivery service available to any customer that: (1) signs a contract with the Company for service under Rate IT; (2) utilizes a minimum of 10,000 CCF per month during each of the seven consecutive billing periods commencing with customer's first meter reading taken on or after April 1; (3) has arranged for the delivery of gas into the Company's system, for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served; and (4) has become a member of a pool under Rate AS and elected Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service under Rate IMBS. Any service hereunder shall be provided by displacement and on a best efforts basis. The Company reserves the right to decline requests to initiate or continue such service whenever, in the Company's judgment, rendering this service would be detrimental to the operation of the Company's system or its ability to supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, DGS, and SS. This tariff schedule shall not preclude the Company, with Commission approval, from entering into special arrangements that are designed to meet unique circumstances.

The service provided hereunder shall be interruptible transportation service from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of customer's meter. The Company, to ensure its ability to reliably supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, DGS and SS, shall have the right for operational, but not economic reasons, to designate the city gate receipt points where the customer is required to deliver its gas.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All gas consumed is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Administrative Charge ~~\$597.83~~\$565.81

Commodity Charge:

Company will deliver the arranged-for gas, less shrinkage which is equal to the Company's system average unaccounted for percentage, at a rate of:

\$ ~~.0696900~~.065958 per

CCF

Plus the throughput charge for the service level selected under Rate IMBS, Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service.

Plus, if applicable, the charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, if applicable, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, GAS Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

~~Sheet No. 69, Rider MGP, Manufactured Gas Plant Rider~~

Filed pursuant to Order dated April 21, 2024 in Case No. 1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2024~~

Effective: May 3, 2024

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

NET MONTHLY BILL (Cont'd)

Plus, if applicable, balancing related charges pursuant to Rate IMBS if customer has elected to operate as its own pool for supply management purposes.

In addition, customer's net monthly bill, excluding gas costs and related taxes that are billed to the customer on suppliers' behalf, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Minimum: Customer will be subject to a monthly minimum bill requirement equivalent to the monthly Administrative Charge shown above, plus the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider and the State Tax Rider, and in addition thereto during the seven consecutive billing periods beginning in April, a 10,000 CCF per month throughput volume minimum.

If customer fails to take delivery of 10,000 CCF per month during the months of April through October, customer will be charged, in addition to the Administrative Charge and the charges for the delivered volume and the applicable Excise Tax Rider and State Tax Rider, an amount equal to the difference between 10,000 CCF and the delivered volume billed at Rate GS-S, including all applicable Riders.

In the event that customer repeatedly and significantly fails to meet the minimum throughput requirement of this tariff, customer may, at the Company's option, be removed from this tariff and denied further service, or may be switched to Rates GS-S, GS-L or Rates FT-S, FT-L.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate IT for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

COMPETITIVE FLEXIBILITY

The Company may, on an individual customer basis, charge a rate lower than that specified in the "Net Monthly Bill" provision in order to meet competition from alternative fuels or other energy sources. The decision to charge a lower rate will be made by the Company based on its interpretation of competitive conditions.

UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

In the event customer fails to interrupt transportation deliveries at Company's request, any excess deliveries through customer's meter will be considered unauthorized deliveries that are subject to the flow-through-of-pipeline penalty charges to the extent that they are incurred by the Company, and in addition thereto, shall be paid for as specified under the "Charges For Unauthorized Deliveries" provision of this rate schedule. The charges for such unauthorized deliveries shall be billed directly to the customer in lieu of its "pool operator," if applicable. However, Company shall not be precluded from physically discontinuing service to the customer if customer refuses to interrupt service when requested by Company.

CHARGES FOR UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

Any customer taking unauthorized deliveries shall be billed an amount reflective of the general service rate, Rate GS-S, Sheet No. 32, including the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery rate or Company's highest cost gas, and one (1) month's demand charges on the volume difference (this charge shall not be imposed more frequently than once in any thirty day period), and/or the cost of operating the Company's propane peak shaving plant, and/or, if so required to effectuate compliance with the interruptible provisions of this schedule, the cost incurred by the Company to valve-off the service. In any event, customer shall reimburse the Company for any interstate pipeline penalty charges resulting from such unauthorized deliveries.

ELECTION OF MONTHLY BALANCING OPTION

A "pool" can be a single Rate IT customer acting on its own behalf, or a group of Rate IT customers who join, or are joined, together for purposes of gas supply management under this tariff. A pool operator has a contractual responsibility to manage the aggregated gas supply requirements of all of the Rate IT customers that comprise its pool. All supply management responsibilities of individual customers are transferred to the pool operator once a customer becomes a part of a pool, as the aggregated balancing requirements of all pool members are treated under this tariff as though they were a single customer with its own supply management responsibilities.

Monthly throughput charges under Rate IMBS, shall be billed directly to the end-use customer. All other balancing charges, including "cash out" charges, penalties and other like charges billed under the provisions of Rate IMBS shall be billed directly to the pool operator, regardless of whether the pool operator is an individual customer acting as its own pool, or an aggregated customer pool operator. For purposes of calculating these charges, the usages of all customers within a pool will be combined into a single pool usage number, which will be matched against the pool operator's total deliveries to its IT pool.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The customer shall enter into a written agreement with the Company. Such agreement shall set forth specific arrangements as to the transportation services provided as well as the level of firm gas required by customer and any other circumstances relating to the individual customer.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

The Company's "best efforts" are defined as the right, at any time, to curtail or interrupt the delivery or transportation of gas under this tariff when, in the judgment of the Company, such curtailment or interruption is necessary to enable the Company to maintain deliveries to higher priority customers or to respond to any emergency.

The pool operator agrees, upon request by Company, to produce, in a timely manner, proof of the purchase of the natural gas to be transported, any necessary regulatory approvals, and any and all transportation arrangements with all interstate pipelines, intrastate pipelines, or others involved in transporting the pool gas' supplies.

Company will not be liable for any costs and/or penalties charged by pipelines, or suppliers, because of pool operator's over- or under-deliveries into the pipeline, or pool customers' failure to take deliveries through customers' meters that, in the aggregate, match the amount of gas transported by the pool operator to the Company's city gate.

In order to qualify for Rate IT service, customers who satisfy the definition of human needs and public welfare customers and primary and secondary schools must purchase standby service, or have alternative fuel capability, or have a combination thereof sufficient to maintain minimal operations.

A human needs and public welfare customer is a customer whose facilities are used for residential dwelling on either a permanent or temporary basis; commercial customers of a residential nature; other customers whose service locations are places of the kind, where the element of human welfare is the predominant factor; and civil and governmental customers whose facilities are required in the performance of protecting and preserving the public health, safety, and welfare. Such facilities shall include, but are not limited to, houses, apartment buildings, correctional institutions, hospitals, nursing homes, and charitable institutions. Specifically excluded are hotels and motels used for temporary lodging and not used as a principal place of residence on a monthly or yearly basis.

The Company will provide customer and/or its designated pool operator, by electronic or other available means of communication, its best available operating data on gas deliveries to individual customers and for the combined pool on a daily basis. Daily operational information shall include information on daily gas flows provided by Automated Meter Reading, equipment, telemetry, or any other means the Company has available to provide the customer or its designated pool operator with its best estimate of daily gas deliveries for individual customer's accounts and the pool's combined accounts.

In order to administer the provisions of this tariff and monitor customer's daily usage, the Company will install remote metering equipment on customer's meter site. Customer will be responsible for payment of the cost of such telemetric equipment, either through a lump sum payment, or at the Company's option, through a monthly facilities charge designed to reimburse the Company for the costs of such equipment. Customer will also be responsible for providing the Company with access to a telephone service at customer's metering site, or such other equipment or utilities that may be necessary, and shall also be responsible for the monthly charges for such telephone service or other necessary equipment or utilities.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

The primary term of contract shall be a minimum of one (1) year. After completion of the primary term, such contract shall continue month to month unless cancelled by either party by giving thirty (30) days' written notice. In the event customer re-applies for service under this tariff within one (1) year of having this contract terminated at customer's request, customer shall pay the minimum charges specified in the Net Monthly Bill provision for the number of months customer's service was inactive.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to Order dated ~~April 21, 2021~~ in Case No. ~~1918-07911830-GA-ALT-UNC~~ before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued: ~~April 23, 2021~~

Effective: ~~May 3, 2021~~

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE GS-L

GENERAL SERVICE - LARGE

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to gas service required for any purpose by an individual non-residential customer using more than 4,000 CCF during the prior calendar year at one premises when supplied at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month	\$214.50
Plus a Usage-Based Charge for All CCF delivered at	\$0.099216 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 71, Rider GCRR, Gas Cost Recovery Rate
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate GS-L for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

EXCISE TAX RIDER

The net monthly bill shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERM OF SERVICE

One (1) year, terminable thereafter on three (3) days written notice by either customer or Company.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE RFTLI

RESIDENTIAL FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE – LOW INCOME

AVAILABILITY

Firm transportation service for residential purposes, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter. Service is available to eligible residential customers, except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. Eligible customers are non-PIPP, low usage residential customer verified at or below 175% of poverty level. The total number of customers who may receive service under Rate RSLI and Rate RFTLI is 10,000. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's sales service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. In either case, the Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. A customer must enter into an agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program pursuant to Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

Residential customers who are enrolled in income payment plans pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code (PIPP Customers), shall be provided their alternative gas supply service exclusively through their own supply pool, for which gas is provided by a willing Supplier whose bid has been approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by the Company in order to return a customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:
All delivered gas is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Fixed Delivery Service Charge per month \$27.48

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported
for customer from Company's city-gate measuring
stations to the outlet side of Company's
meter used to measure deliveries to
customer at:

All CCF \$0.030975 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate RFTLI for the purpose of a retail residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers that sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to any customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with all notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises.

During severe weather periods, Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on Company's system. While Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

4. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to Company's system.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to:

- (1) customers actively enrolled on the Percentage of Income Payment Plan (PIPP) pursuant to Rule 4901:1-18-04(B), Ohio Administrative Code;
- (2) the unpaid account balances of those customers being backbilled in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code;
- (3) the unpaid account balances of those customers on other Commission-approved deferred payment plans or the Budget Billing Plan, except that a late payment charge may be assessed on any deferred payment plan or Budget Billing Plan amount not timely paid; and
- (4) the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

At a residential customer's request, the Company will waive a late payment charge where the current charge is the only late payment charge levied in the most recent twelve-month period.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller President

RATE FT-L

FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - LARGE

AVAILABILITY

Firm full requirements transportation service for an individual non-residential customer using more than 4,000 CCF during the prior calendar year at one premises, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. This service is available within the Company's entire service territory, and at the customer's option, to serve the firm service requirements of interruptible transportation customers in combination with service under Rate IT to all non-residential customers except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included, in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. The Supplier or the Company shall give no less than 30 days written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. Service shall be provided on demand from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. Customer must enter into a "pooling" agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program, and must arrange for the delivery of gas into Company's system.

Customers who believe that they will significantly increase throughput, from their historic firm service levels, shall so inform the Company.

Except as provided under Company Rider NGV, gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers who elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by Company in order to return customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

A customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Service provided under this schedule shall be firm service.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill shall be determined in accordance with the following rates and charges:

Fixed Delivery Service Charge	\$214.50
-------------------------------	----------

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to the customer: \$0.099216 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:
Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:
Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Supplier shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider_AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate FT-L for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 Ohio Revised Code, or to the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by Company's requirements for, its pooling program. This list shall be available to customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer who desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with any notice requirements of the Supplier's Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premise. During severe weather periods, the Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on the Company's system. While the Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so. A customer whose operations are affected by swings in the composition of the Company's gas is required to notify the Company of that fact so that the Company can give the customer advance notice when the propane plants are going to be in operation.

4. Service Term

Except customers returned for non-payment or for good cause shown, a customer who elects service under this tariff, other than a small commercial customer, shall not be permitted to return to Company's sales service for at least one (1) year.

5. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to the Company's system.

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT

If the customer requests the Company to install remote meter reading equipment at customer's meter location in order to monitor the customer's usage on a daily basis, customer shall be responsible for the cost of such equipment, either through a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, designed to reimburse the Company for the cost of such equipment.

In the event customer, in cooperation with its Supplier, wishes to install telemetering devices or related equipment in order to monitor consumption, the Company shall provide the necessary interface with its meters. Customer shall be responsible for the costs of providing such interface, including the cost of electric and or telephone services, if required. Customer shall pay the Company, either through a lump sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option,

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

designed to reimburse Company for the cost of providing such interface. Customer shall be solely responsible for installing, maintaining, and operating devices that it installs. Customer, or its agent, shall provide the Company with daily usage data if requested by the Company. In the event of disagreement between the parties, the Company's metered consumption data shall be used for all billings to the customer.

CURTAILMENT OF SERVICE

Company may curtail service under this rate schedule in accordance with curtailment procedures on file with, and approved by, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. In the event customer fails to comply with the Company's direction to curtail, the Company reserves the right to physically discontinue service to the customer. Company shall not be liable in damages or otherwise to customer for any loss of production, other claim, or any consequences occasioned by customer as a result of such curtailment or because of the lack of advance notice to customer of such curtailment.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE GGIT

GAS GENERATION INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION RATE

AVAILABILITY

Interruptible local delivery service for natural gas to be used in any commercial gas-fired electric generators, including but not limited to customer-owned co-generation, and available to any customer that: (1) signs a Service Agreement contract with the Company for service under this Rate GGIT; (2) arranges for the delivery of gas into the Company's system for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served; and (3) utilizes natural gas transported under this tariff as its primary fuel source in combustion gas turbines unit(s) or combined cycle unit(s) for the purpose of generating electricity. Service under this tariff will be provided by displacement and on a "best efforts" basis. The Company reserves the right to decline requests to initiate or continue service hereunder whenever, in the Company's sole judgment, rendering service will be detrimental to the operation of the Company's system or impair its ability to supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, IT, or other special contract arrangements. This tariff schedule shall not preclude the Company, with Commission approval, from entering into special arrangements that are designed to meet unique circumstances.

The service provided hereunder will be interruptible local gas delivery service provided on a "best efforts" basis from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of customer's meter. The Company, to ensure its ability to reliably supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, and IT, shall have the right for operational, but not economic reasons, to designate the city gate receipt points where the customer is required to deliver its gas.

In order to receive service under this tariff, customer must have in place throughout the term of this agreement, a gas storage/balancing service agreement with an upstream supplier under which that supplier will balance customer's hourly and daily usage with deliveries into the Company's system. The Company will install, at customer's expense, metering equipment that will allow it to monitor customer's hourly and daily usage.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All gas consumed is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Administrative Charge per month:

Shall be equal to the monthly Administrative Charge under the Company's Interruptible Transportation Tariff (Rate IT) or its successor tariff.

Facilities Charge per month:

Monthly amount required to amortize, over the term of the Service Agreement, any additional or incremental costs that the Company incurs in constructing facilities to bring service to customer, including the costs of such facilities as mains and service installations, metering and regulating equipment, and telemetric and flow control equipment, plus a reasonable contribution to overall system costs.

NET MONTHLY BILL (Contd.)

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 18
Sheet No. 46.2
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 46.1
Page 2 of 4

Usage-based Delivery Charge:

Company will deliver the arranged-for gas, less shrinkage, which is equal to the Company's system average unaccounted-for percentage, at a rate of:

First 1,000,000 CCF per month	100% of Rate IT Commodity Charge
Next 500,000 CCF per month	75% of Rate IT Commodity Charge
Over 1,500,000 CCF per month	60% of Rate IT Commodity Charge

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, if applicable, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

In addition, customer's net monthly bill, excluding gas costs and related taxes that are billed to the customer by supplier, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

MINIMUM BILL PROVISION

Customer will be subject to a monthly "Minimum bill" equal to the Monthly Administrative Charge and Facilities Charge, as noted above, plus applicable riders and taxes, as may be amended and approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio from time to time.

UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

In the event customer fails to interrupt transportation deliveries at Company's request, any excess deliveries through customer's meter will be considered unauthorized deliveries that are subject to the flow-through-of-pipeline penalty charges to the extent that they are incurred by the Company, and in addition thereto, shall be paid for as specified under the "Charges For Unauthorized Deliveries" provision of this rate schedule. The charges for such unauthorized deliveries shall be billed directly to the customer. However, Company may, at its sole discretion, physically discontinue service to the customer if customer refuses to interrupt service when requested by Company. Further, Company may temporarily or permanently discontinue service if customer fails to operate in accordance with the Company's directives and limitations regarding service under this tariff.

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

CHARGES FOR UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

Any customer taking unauthorized deliveries shall be billed an amount reflective of the general service rate, Rate GS-S, Sheet No. 32, including the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery rate or Company's highest cost gas, and one month's demand charges on the volume difference (this charge shall not be imposed more frequently than once in any thirty day period), and/or the cost of operating the Company's propane peak shaving plant, and/or, if so required to effectuate compliance with the interruptible provisions of this schedule, the cost incurred by the Company to valve-off the service. In any event, customer shall reimburse the Company for any interstate pipeline penalty charges resulting from such unauthorized deliveries.

BALANCING

For purposes of this tariff, a "pool" shall be defined as one or more customers taking service under Rate GGIT that are joined together for supply management purposes. A "pool operator" has a contractual responsibility to manage the aggregated gas supply requirements of all the Rate GGIT customers that comprise its pool. All supply management responsibilities of individual customers are transferred to the pool operator once a customer becomes a part of a pool, as the aggregated balancing requirements of all pool members are treated under this tariff as though they were a single customer with its own supply management responsibilities. Because of the large hourly and daily usage likely to flow under this tariff, the pool operator is required to contract with the pipelines designated by the Company for hourly and daily deliveries that correspond with their actual burn of gas delivered under this tariff.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The customer shall enter into a written Service Agreement with the Company. Such Service Agreement shall set forth specific arrangements as to the transportation services provided, the level of firm gas required by customer, Monthly Facilities Charge, the minimum bill calculation, and any other circumstances relating to the individual customer.

The Company's "best efforts" are defined as the right, at any time, to curtail or interrupt the delivery or transportation of gas under this tariff when, in the judgment of the Company, such curtailment or interruption is necessary to enable the Company to maintain deliveries to higher priority customers or to respond to any emergency.

The Pool operator agrees, upon request by Company, to produce, in a timely manner, proof of the purchase of the natural gas transported, any necessary regulatory approvals, and any and all transportation arrangements with all interstate pipelines, intrastate pipelines, or others involved in transporting the pool gas' supplies.

Company will not be liable for any costs and/or penalties charged by pipelines, or suppliers, because of pool operator's over- or under-deliveries into the pipeline, or pool customers' failure to take deliveries through customers' meters that, in the aggregate, match the amount of gas transported by the pool operator to the Company's city gate.

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

The Company will provide customer and/or its designated pool operator, by electronic or other available means of communication, its best available operating data on gas deliveries to individual customers and for the combined pool on an hourly and daily basis. Hourly/daily operational information shall include information on hourly/daily gas flows provided by Automated Meter Reading (AMR), equipment, telemetry, or any other means the Company has available to provide the customer or its designated pool operator with its best estimate of hourly/daily gas deliveries for individual customer's and the pool's combined accounts.

In order to administer the provisions of this tariff and monitor customer's hourly/daily usage, the Company will install remote metering equipment on customer's meter site to separately meter gas used for generation volumes that qualify for this rate. Customer will be responsible for payment of the cost of such telemetric equipment, either through a lump sum payment, or at the Company's option, through a monthly facilities charge designed to reimburse the Company for the costs of such equipment. Customer will also be responsible for providing the Company with access to a telephone service at customer's metering site, or such other equipment or utilities that may be necessary, and shall also be responsible for the monthly charges for such telephone service or other necessary equipment or utilities.

The primary term of contract shall be a minimum of five (5) years. After completion of the primary term, such contract shall continue month to month unless cancelled by either party by giving thirty (30) days written notice.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law. This will not preclude a special agreement in the event other considerations, such as bypass, are deemed solely by Company to be credible options for the customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE IT

INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

AVAILABILITY

Curtable natural gas local delivery service available to any customer that: (1) signs a contract with the Company for service under Rate IT; (2) utilizes a minimum of 10,000 CCF per month during each of the seven consecutive billing periods commencing with customer's first meter reading taken on or after April 1; (3) has arranged for the delivery of gas into the Company's system, for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premises to be served; and (4) has become a member of a pool under Rate AS and elected Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service under Rate IMBS. Any service hereunder shall be provided by displacement and on a best efforts basis. The Company reserves the right to decline requests to initiate or continue such service whenever, in the Company's judgment, rendering this service would be detrimental to the operation of the Company's system or its ability to supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, DGS, and SS. This tariff schedule shall not preclude the Company, with Commission approval, from entering into special arrangements that are designed to meet unique circumstances.

The service provided hereunder shall be interruptible transportation service from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of customer's meter. The Company, to ensure its ability to reliably supply gas to customers receiving service under the provisions of Rates RS, RSLI, RFT, RFTLI, GS-S, GS-L, FT-S, FT-L, DGS and SS, shall have the right for operational, but not economic reasons, to designate the city gate receipt points where the customer is required to deliver its gas.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill is determined as follows:

All gas consumed is billed in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF).

Administrative Charge	\$565.81
-----------------------	----------

Commodity Charge:

Company will deliver the arranged-for gas, less shrinkage
which is equal to the Company's system average unaccounted
for percentage, at a rate of:

\$ 0.065958 per CCF

Plus the throughput charge for the service level selected under Rate IMBS, Interruptible Monthly Balancing Service.

Plus, if applicable, the charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, if applicable, all delivered gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider

Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program Rider

Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, GAS Surcredit Rider

Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider

Filed pursuant to Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

NET MONTHLY BILL (Cont'd)

Plus, if applicable, balancing related charges pursuant to Rate IMBS if customer has elected to operate as its own pool for supply management purposes.

In addition, customer's net monthly bill, excluding gas costs and related taxes that are billed to the customer on suppliers' behalf, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Minimum: Customer will be subject to a monthly minimum bill requirement equivalent to the monthly Administrative Charge shown above, plus the Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider and the State Tax Rider, and in addition thereto during the seven consecutive billing periods beginning in April, a 10,000 CCF per month throughput volume minimum.

If customer fails to take delivery of 10,000 CCF per month during the months of April through October, customer will be charged, in addition to the Administrative Charge and the charges for the delivered volume and the applicable Excise Tax Rider and State Tax Rider, an amount equal to the difference between 10,000 CCF and the delivered volume billed at Rate GS-S, including all applicable Riders.

In the event that customer repeatedly and significantly fails to meet the minimum throughput requirement of this tariff, customer may, at the Company's option, be removed from this tariff and denied further service, or may be switched to Rates GS-S, GS-L or Rates FT-S, FT-L.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate IT for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

COMPETITIVE FLEXIBILITY

The Company may, on an individual customer basis, charge a rate lower than that specified in the "Net Monthly Bill" provision in order to meet competition from alternative fuels or other energy sources. The decision to charge a lower rate will be made by the Company based on its interpretation of competitive conditions.

UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

In the event customer fails to interrupt transportation deliveries at Company's request, any excess deliveries through customer's meter will be considered unauthorized deliveries that are subject to the flow-through-of-pipeline penalty charges to the extent that they are incurred by the Company, and in addition thereto, shall be paid for as specified under the "Charges For Unauthorized Deliveries" provision of this rate schedule. The charges for such unauthorized deliveries shall be billed directly to the customer in lieu of its "pool operator," if applicable. However, Company shall not be precluded from physically discontinuing service to the customer if customer refuses to interrupt service when requested by Company.

CHARGES FOR UNAUTHORIZED DELIVERIES

Any customer taking unauthorized deliveries shall be billed an amount reflective of the general service rate, Rate GS-S, Sheet No. 32, including the expected gas cost component of the gas cost recovery rate or Company's highest cost gas, and one (1) month's demand charges on the volume difference (this charge shall not be imposed more frequently than once in any thirty day period), and/or the cost of operating the Company's propane peak shaving plant, and/or, if so required to effectuate compliance with the interruptible provisions of this schedule, the cost incurred by the Company to valve-off the service. In any event, customer shall reimburse the Company for any interstate pipeline penalty charges resulting from such unauthorized deliveries.

ELECTION OF MONTHLY BALANCING OPTION

A "pool" can be a single Rate IT customer acting on its own behalf, or a group of Rate IT customers who join, or are joined, together for purposes of gas supply management under this tariff. A pool operator has a contractual responsibility to manage the aggregated gas supply requirements of all of the Rate IT customers that comprise its pool. All supply management responsibilities of individual customers are transferred to the pool operator once a customer becomes a part of a pool, as the aggregated balancing requirements of all pool members are treated under this tariff as though they were a single customer with its own supply management responsibilities.

Monthly throughput charges under Rate IMBS, shall be billed directly to the end-use customer. All other balancing charges, including "cash out" charges, penalties and other like charges billed under the provisions of Rate IMBS shall be billed directly to the pool operator, regardless of whether the pool operator is an individual customer acting as its own pool, or an aggregated customer pool operator. For purposes of calculating these charges, the usages of all customers within a pool will be combined into a single pool usage number, which will be matched against the pool operator's total deliveries to its IT pool.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in the Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance is due and payable.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The customer shall enter into a written agreement with the Company. Such agreement shall set forth specific arrangements as to the transportation services provided as well as the level of firm gas required by customer and any other circumstances relating to the individual customer.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

Filed pursuant to Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

The Company's "best efforts" are defined as the right, at any time, to curtail or interrupt the delivery or transportation of gas under this tariff when, in the judgment of the Company, such curtailment or interruption is necessary to enable the Company to maintain deliveries to higher priority customers or to respond to any emergency.

The pool operator agrees, upon request by Company, to produce, in a timely manner, proof of the purchase of the natural gas to be transported, any necessary regulatory approvals, and any and all transportation arrangements with all interstate pipelines, intrastate pipelines, or others involved in transporting the pool gas' supplies.

Company will not be liable for any costs and/or penalties charged by pipelines, or suppliers, because of pool operator's over- or under-deliveries into the pipeline, or pool customers' failure to take deliveries through customers' meters that, in the aggregate, match the amount of gas transported by the pool operator to the Company's city gate.

In order to qualify for Rate IT service, customers who satisfy the definition of human needs and public welfare customers and primary and secondary schools must purchase standby service, or have alternative fuel capability, or have a combination thereof sufficient to maintain minimal operations.

A human needs and public welfare customer is a customer whose facilities are used for residential dwelling on either a permanent or temporary basis; commercial customers of a residential nature; other customers whose service locations are places of the kind, where the element of human welfare is the predominant factor; and civil and governmental customers whose facilities are required in the performance of protecting and preserving the public health, safety, and welfare. Such facilities shall include, but are not limited to, houses, apartment buildings, correctional institutions, hospitals, nursing homes, and charitable institutions. Specifically excluded are hotels and motels used for temporary lodging and not used as a principal place of residence on a monthly or yearly basis.

The Company will provide customer and/or its designated pool operator, by electronic or other available means of communication, its best available operating data on gas deliveries to individual customers and for the combined pool on a daily basis. Daily operational information shall include information on daily gas flows provided by Automated Meter Reading, equipment, telemetry, or any other means the Company has available to provide the customer or its designated pool operator with its best estimate of daily gas deliveries for individual customer's accounts and the pool's combined accounts.

In order to administer the provisions of this tariff and monitor customer's daily usage, the Company will install remote metering equipment on customer's meter site. Customer will be responsible for payment of the cost of such telemetric equipment, either through a lump sum payment, or at the Company's option, through a monthly facilities charge designed to reimburse the Company for the costs of such equipment. Customer will also be responsible for providing the Company with access to a telephone service at customer's metering site, or such other equipment or utilities that may be necessary, and shall also be responsible for the monthly charges for such telephone service or other necessary equipment or utilities.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Contd.)

Filed pursuant to Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

The primary term of contract shall be a minimum of one (1) year. After completion of the primary term, such contract shall continue month to month unless cancelled by either party by giving thirty (30) days' written notice. In the event customer re-applies for service under this tariff within one (1) year of having this contract terminated at customer's request, customer shall pay the minimum charges specified in the Net Monthly Bill provision for the number of months customer's service was inactive.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to Order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RATE FT-S

FIRM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - SMALL

AVAILABILITY

Firm full requirements transportation service for an individual non-residential customer using 4,000 CCF or less during the prior calendar year at one premise, which is provided from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. This service is available within the Company's entire service territory, and at the customer's option, to serve the firm service requirements of interruptible transportation customers in combination with service under Rate IT to all non-residential customers except for those customers whose utility service accounts are past due at the time customer desires to utilize this service. The Company may terminate a customer's supplier contract for non-payment and return the customer to the Company's service only if: (1) the Supplier has made an affirmative request for the Company to act as its agent to terminate customer contracts for non-payment; and (2) the Supplier has included in its customer contracts, a notice that the Company can terminate such contracts for non-payment. Where the Supplier is performing its own billing of the gas supply, termination of the agreement will be at the discretion of the Supplier, as specified in the Supplier contracts for service. The Supplier or the Company shall give no less than thirty (30) days' written notice that the customer will be switched from the Supplier and revert to the Company unless the past due amount is paid by the customer's next scheduled bill due date. If the past due amount is paid by the next scheduled bill due date, the customer will not revert to the Company and will remain with the Supplier. If the Company provides the late payment notice to the customer, it will send a copy of the notice to the customer's Supplier. Service shall be provided on demand from the Company's city gate receipt points to the outlet side of Company's meter used to serve the customer. Customer must enter into a "pooling" agreement with a Supplier that meets the Company's requirements for participation in this pooling program, and must arrange for the delivery of gas into Company's system.

Customers that believe that they will significantly increase throughput, from their historic firm service levels, shall so inform the Company.

Gas transported under this tariff shall be for customer's sole use at one point of delivery where distribution mains are adjacent to the premise to be served. Any gas provided hereunder shall be provided by displacement.

DEFINITIONS

Terms used in this tariff are defined in the same manner as set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

CHANGES IN CUSTOMERS' SERVICE ELECTIONS

Customers that elect service under this tariff and later return to Company's sales service may do so only in accordance with the requirements of the Company's tariffs and applicable regulations of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. If a customer voluntarily elects to return to the Company's sales service, all incremental gas procurement, upstream transportation, and storage costs incurred by Company in order to return customer to sales service shall be borne by customer pursuant to the Commission's Gas Transportation Program Guidelines adopted in Case No. 85-800-GA-COI.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

TRANSFER OF SERVICE

Customers may transfer from one Supplier's pool to any other Supplier's pool or revert to the Company's sales service upon payment of a \$4.00 switching fee. If the Company's firm transportation program terminates, or if the Company terminates a customer's Supplier's participation in the Company's transportation program, the customer may revert to the Company's sales service without paying the switching fee.

After the Company installs additional information system capability on or before September 1, 2007, a customer participating in a governmental aggregation will not be subject to the switching fee, regardless of whether the customer returns to the Company's sales service from the governmental aggregation or the governmental aggregator chooses to switch its aggregation to a different Supplier.

CHARACTER OF SERVICE

Service provided under this schedule shall be firm service.

NET MONTHLY BILL

The Net Monthly Bill shall be determined in accordance with the following rates and charges:

Fixed Delivery Service Charge \$86.73

Plus a Usage-Based Charge per CCF for each CCF of gas transported for customer from Company's city-gate measuring stations to the outlet side of Company's meter used to measure deliveries to the customer: \$0.094126 per CCF

Plus the applicable charge per month as set forth on:

Sheet No. 61, Rider GTCJA, Gas Tax Cut and Jobs Act Rider
Sheet No. 65, Rider AMRP, Accelerated Main Replacement Program
Sheet No. 84, Rider CEP, Capital Expenditure Program Rider

Plus, all transported gas shall be subject to an adjustment per CCF as set forth on:

Sheet No. 63, Rider PIPP, Percentage of Income Payment Plan
Sheet No. 66, Rider GSR, Gas Surcredit Rider
Sheet No. 67, Rider UE-G, Uncollectible Expense Rider
Sheet No. 68, Rider STR, State Tax Rider
Sheet No. 76, Rider CCCR, Contract Commitment Cost Recovery Rider.

Plus, or minus, rate adjustments which may occur as a result of changes in the rates of interstate pipelines, or of rulings of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and/or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and for which it is determined that all customers should be allocated some portion of the corresponding costs or refunds.

In addition, the net monthly bill, as calculated above, shall be adjusted by application of the percent specified on Sheet No. 64, Rider ETR, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider, except that finance charges are excluded in the computation of the net bill.

Customer and/or its Suppliers shall be responsible for the collection and payment of excise taxes, revenue taxes, or similar taxes on the gas supplies that customer purchases from its Supplier.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

MINIMUM BILL

The monthly minimum bill shall be the Fixed Delivery Service Charge and applicable charge under Rider_AMRP, Rider CEP, and Rider AU shown above, plus the percentage specified in Rider ETR, Sheet No. 64, Ohio Excise Tax Liability Rider.

NATURAL GAS VEHICLE FUELING RIDER

Any gas delivered under Rate FT-S for the purpose of a:

1. Retail non-residential privately owned natural gas vehicle (NGV) fueling station for the sole purpose of fueling a customer-owned NGV at the customer's premises

and/or a

2. Commercial NGV fueling stations in the business of selling natural gas to the general public for the purpose of fueling NGV's

shall be subject to Sheet No. 47, Rider NGV, Natural Gas Vehicle Fueling Rider.

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE

Payment of the total amount due must be received in Company's office by the due date shown on the bill. When not so paid, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the unpaid balance of the bill is due and payable. However, this provision is not applicable to the unpaid account balances of those customers being back-billed in accordance with Section 4933.28 of the Ohio Revised Code, or to the unpaid gas commodity portion of account balances of those customers served by a Supplier participating in the Company's Choice Program where Company has not agreed to purchase the Supplier's accounts receivable.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approved Supplier List

Company shall maintain a list of qualified Suppliers from which customer can choose. Such list shall include Suppliers who sign a Gas Supply Aggregation/Customer Pooling Agreement in which Supplier agrees to participate in, and abide by, Company's requirements for its pooling program. This list shall be available to customer upon request.

2. Applications and Service Date

A customer that desires service under this tariff shall apply through its chosen Supplier. Unless the Company determines that the customer is not eligible to become a transportation customer of the Supplier, the Company shall transfer the customer to the Supplier's pool on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the date the Company receives the transfer request from the Supplier. The Company shall notify the Supplier of the actual transfer date.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd)

A customer may request termination of service under this tariff and return to the Company's sales service by notifying the Company, and the request will become effective on the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date that is twelve (12) or more calendar days from the receipt of such notification. In the event that a customer is returned to sales service for non-payment, the Supplier shall provide the Company with notice of termination and shall comply with any notice requirements of the Suppliers' Code of Conduct set forth in Rate FRAS, Sheet No. 44.

3. Delivery Pressure and Gas Composition

Gas service under this tariff shall be at the pressure that is currently available at customer's premises. During severe weather periods, the Company must sometimes supplement its flowing gas supplies with propane-air gas produced at peaking plants located at various points on the Company's system. While the Company attempts to manufacture such gas at a heating value roughly equivalent to the heating value of its flowing gas supplies, it is not always able to do so. A customer whose operations are affected by swings in the composition of the Company's gas is required to notify the Company of that fact so that the Company can give the customer advance notice when the propane plants are going to be in operation.

4. Service Term

Except customers returned for non-payment or for good cause shown, a customer that elects service under this tariff, other than a small commercial customer, shall not be permitted to return to Company's sales service for at least one (1) year.

5. Regulatory Approvals

Customer's Supplier shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and securing all requisite regulatory or governmental approvals, certificates or permits to enable gas to be delivered to the Company's system.

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT

If the customer requests the Company to install remote meter reading equipment at customer's meter location in order to monitor the customer's usage on a daily basis, customer shall be responsible for the cost of such equipment either through a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, designed to reimburse the Company for the cost of such equipment.

In the event customer, in co-operation with its Supplier, wishes to install telemetering devices or related equipment in order to monitor consumption, the Company shall provide the necessary interface with its meters. Customer shall be responsible for the costs of providing such interface, including the cost of electric and or telephone services, if required. Customer shall pay the Company a lump-sum payment or monthly facilities charges, at the Company's option, that is designed to reimburse Company for the cost of providing such interface. Customer shall be solely responsible for

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

AUTOMATIC METER READING EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

installing, maintaining, and operating devices that it installs. Customer, or its agent, shall provide the Company with daily usage data if requested by the Company. In the event of disagreement between the parties, the Company's metered consumption data shall be used for all billings to the customer.

CURTAILMENT OF SERVICE

Company may curtail service under this rate schedule in accordance with curtailment procedures on file with, and approved by, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. In the event customer fails to comply with the Company's direction to curtail, the Company reserves the right to physically discontinue service to the customer. Company shall not be liable in damages or otherwise to customer for any loss of production, other claim, or any consequences occasioned by customer as a result of such curtailment or because of the lack of advance notice to customer of such curtailment.

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service, and all conditions applying thereto, are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and to Company's Service Rules and Regulations currently in effect as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and as provided by law and by the regulations of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Filed pursuant to an Order dated ____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

RIDER GTCJA

GAS TAX CUTS AND JOBS ACT RIDER

APPLICABILITY

Applicable to all customers receiving service under the Company's sales and transportation rate schedules. This Rider will be updated to reflect any future changes in federal tax law impacting the Company.

RATE

The monthly billing amount calculated for each rate schedule shall be adjusted by the amount or the billed usage multiplied by the applicable charge or credit as indicated below.

Rate RS and RSLI, Residential Service	\$ (0.42) / Month
Rate RFT and RFTLI, Residential Firm Transportation Service	\$ (0.42) / Month
Rate GS-S and FT-S, General Service and Firm Transportation Small	\$ (1.36) / Month
Rate GS-L and FT-L, General Service and Firm Transportation Large	\$ (5.00) / Month
Rate IT, Interruptible Transportation Service	\$ (0.0011) / Ccf
Rate GGIT, Gas Generation Interruptible Transportation Rate	\$ (0.0011) / Ccf

SERVICE REGULATIONS

The supplying of, and billing for, service and all conditions applying thereto are subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, and to Company's Service Regulations currently in effect, as filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, as provided by law.

Filed pursuant to an order dated _____ in Case No. 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Effective:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President /s/ Amy B. Spiller

Duke Energy Ohio
139 East Fourth Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

P.U.C.O. Gas No. 10
Sheet No. 69.4
Cancels and Supersedes
Sheet No. 69.3
Page 1 of 1

RIDER MGP
MANUFACTURED GAS PLANT RIDER

THIS TARIFF IS HEREBY CANCELLED AND WITHDRAWN

Issued pursuant to an Order dated _____ in Case 18-1830-GA-UNC before the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Issued:

Issued by Amy B. Spiller, President

Effective:

This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on

8/31/2021 3:49:30 PM

in

Case No(s). 14-0375-GA-RDR, 19-1085-GA-AAM, 18-1830-GA-UNC, 20-0053-GA-RDR

Summary: Exhibit Joint Exhibit 2 Tariffs electronically filed by Mrs. Tammy M Meyer on behalf of Duke Energy Ohio Inc. and D'Ascenzo, Rocco and Kingery, Jeanne W.